U)-

£ Earth Negotiations Bulletin

j A Reportl ng SerV| ce for EnV| ronment and Devel opment Negotlatlons
¥ Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/biodiv/article8j/art8jinfo.html

Vol. 9 No. 145

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (11ISD)

Tuesday, 28 March 2000

HIGHLIGHTSOF THE WORKING GROUP ON
ARTICLE 8(J)
MONDAY, 27 MARCH 2000
Indigenous and local community representatives held an

opening ceremony to start the meeting. Delegatesthen metin
Plenary to hear opening statements and to discuss the agendaand
other organizational matters. In the afternoon, the Working Group
discussed agendaitem seven on international cooperation among
indigenousand local communities.

OPENING STATEMENTS

To start the meeting, Hamdallah Zedan, Executive Secretary of
the CBD, invited agroup of indigenous peoplesto conduct an
opening ceremony. He then welcomed participants, noting the
meeting was evidence of commitment to the CBD’s objectives and
implementation of Article 8(j). He expressed gratitude to the
Spanish government for hosting the meeting, aswell asto Canada,
the Central African Republic, Finland, Germany, the United
Kingdom, and Sweden for their financial support. He stated that
traditional knowledgeisintegral to CBD implementation efforts
and noted that Article 8(j) influences other thematic and crosscut-
ting issues. He expressed his hope that the spirit of collaboration
visiblein the Madrid Workshop on Traditional Knowledge heldin
1997 would be maintai ned.

Fernando Riquelme, Minister for Special Affairsof Spain,
stated that Spain recognizesthat respect for cultural and biological
diversity isimportant for humanity. He noted participationin the
CBD of indigenous and local communitiesand their role as guard-
ians of biodiversity. The Minister said Spain has been working
since 1977 toward recognizing the role of indigenous peoples, and
supported the Madrid workshop, COP-4, the Third International
Indigenous Forum on Biodiversity, and workshops on indigenous
issuesin Colombiaand Bolivia. He pointed to Spain’s sponsorship
of the present meeting and the I ndigenous Forum asfurther exam-
plesof Spain’scommitment.

Isabel Tocino, Minister of the Environment of Spain, noted the
report of the M adrid workshop and arecent workshop organized by
Spain on indigenous peoples and protected areas. Tocino stressed
the need to safeguard collective property rightsand expressed
Spain’s support for a binding mechanism as effective asexisting
intellectual property rights (IPR). She urged that this meeting make
progresson legal mechanismsto protect indigenous knowledge,
and called for apanel of expertson Article 8(j) and supported
incentivesfor indigenous| PR, sui generis, common and customary
law systems. She highlighted the creation of the Center for Study
and Preservation of Biodiversity in Sevilla, and concluded by offi-
cially opening the meeting.

Juan LuisMuriel, Ministry of Environment of Spain, wasintro-
duced asthe meeting’s chair.

Hamdallah Zedan called for amoment of silencefor Arthur
Campeau, Canada’ sfirst Ambassador for the Environment and
Sustainable Devel opment, who recently passed away. He high-
lighted Campeau’s contributionsto and rolein the Canadian
government, the UN Conference on Environment and Develop-
ment, the crafting of Article 8(j), the CBD Secretariat, and the
establishment of the Canadian Environment Roundtable and the
International Institute for Sustainable Development. Zedan
concluded by noting Campeau’s commitment to indigenous rights
and their involvement in the conservation and sustainable use of
biodiversity.

ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS

Chair Muriel asked for comments on the agenda (UNEP/CBD/
WG8J/1/1). TheINTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE OF INDIGE-
NOUS PEOPL ES OF TROPICAL FORESTS (INTERNA-
TIONAL ALLIANCE) noted astatement prepared at the Fourth
Indigenous Forum on Biodiversity heldin Sevilla, Spain, from 24-
25 March, and stated that indigenous and local peoples’ representa-
tives should take amore active part in the Working Group’s delib-
erationsand in writing thefinal report. CANADA, supported by
INDIA, pointed out that implementation priorities should be
defined clearly and work elements should be considered together in
the Sub-Working Groups. Indigenous and local community repre-
sentativesfrom Chile, Suriname, Costa Ricaand Peru called for:
clarification of the procedures and participation in working group
deliberations; representation of indigenousand local community
groupsin drafting reports; and the appointment of indigenous Co-
Chairs. BURKINA FASO called for agendaitemson theimple-
mentation of Article 8(j) and prioritiesfor implementation of the
work programmeto be discussed in Plenary. The Chairman agreed
to this suggestion and stated that the two Sub-Working Groups
would discuss the remaining items. He asked for written proposals
for the Sub-Working Group Co-Chair positions.

Two representatives of the Indigenous Forum presented the
statement prepared by theforum and stressed: the need to recognize
collective sovereignty over indigenous knowledge; theright to
participate in decision-making processes; prior informed consent
and theright to deny accessto knowledge, bioprospecting and
application of PR contravening the rights of indigenous peoples;
repatriation of genetic resources and traditional knowledge; and
application of the precautionary principle where indigenous rights
are at stake. They also noted that the CBD has not recognized the
role of indigenouswomen's knowledge and noted the recommen-
dations of theforum, including, inter alia: maintaining the Working

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Stas Burgiel <stas@iisd.org>, Michael Davis <mdavis@pcug.org.au>, Wendy
Jackson <wendy @iisd.org> and Jessica Suplie <jsuplie@iisd.org>. The Digital Editor is David Fernau <david@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D.
<pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, the Government of Canada(through CIDA and DFAIT), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and L andscape (SAEFL),
the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-ENV). General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 is
provided by the the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of
Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Ministry of
Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the Government of Australia, the United Nations Devel opment Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility
(GEF) and BP Amoco. Specific funding for this meeting was provided by the Ministry of the Environment of Spain, and the Canadian Department of Foreign Affairsand
International Trade (DFAIT) and Environment Canada. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206.
11SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinionsexpressed inthe Earth
NegotiationsBulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect theviewsof 11SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used
in non-commercia publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing
Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite
image was taken above Sevilla©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Tuesday, 28 March 2000

Vol. 9 No. 145 Page 2

Group on Article 8(j); providing resourcesfor participation and
securing funding for future sessions; establishing an indigenous
clearing-house mechanism; maintaining the liaison group for
indigenous peoplesand local communities; articulating the role of
indigenouswomen in the CBD process; and urging the Working
Group to consider issues such as | PR, human rights, trade, tourism
and protected areas.

INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION AMONG INDIGENOUS
AND LOCAL COMMUNITIES

A representative of the CBD Secretariat introduced the agenda
item on measuresto strengthen cooperation among indigenous and
local communities at theinternational level and outlined the corre-
sponding background document (UNEP/CBD/WG8J/1/4). The
INTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE noted that the CBD’s definition
of indigenous and local communitiesfailsto recognize such groups
as“peoples.” ZIMBABWE, LESOTHO, JAMAICA and
SENEGAL stressed the need to distinguish and adequately priori-
tizetherole of local communities. GEORGIA asked that the defini-
tion of indigenous and local communities embodying traditional
lifestylesbe clarified. The COUNCIL OF ALL-MAPUCHE
LANDS called for aninitiative on indigenous rights and parti cipa-
tionintheinternational system, and for consideration of the
impacts of multilateral economic agreements. CANADA encour-
aged Partiesto include indigenous representatives on delegations,
and advocated more support for indigenous participation in terms
of information provision.

BOLIVIA, INDIA, SPAIN, the ASIAN INDIGENOUS AND
TRIBAL PEOPLES NETWORK, the COORDINATING BODY
FOR INDIGENOUS COMMUNITIESOF THEAMAZON
BASIN and WWF/IUCN supported capacity-building and finan-
cial support for indigenous and local communitiesin areas such as
improved coordination, attendance at international meetings,
specialized training for project development, negotiating accessto
genetic resources and establishing benefit-sharing mechanisms.
The INTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE stated that technical and
financial assistance should be provided on the basis of self-defined
needs. CANADA and JAMAICA expressed support for the devel-
opment and strengthening of networks. PERU called for increased
awareness of existing funding sourcesfor protection of collective
knowledge.

Regarding arecommendation in the background paper on the
Clearing-House Mechanism (CHM), ITALY called for an examina-
tion of its potential for strengthening cooperation, and MEXICO
calledfor clarification of itsrole and operationsregarding Article
8(j). ECUADOR and SPAIN called for amore specialized rolefor
the CHM in encouraging current processes and improving collec-
tion and dissemination of information about indigenous and local
communities. The USidentified the Indigenous Biodiversity Infor-
mation Network as a potential model for information exchange.
HAITI, LESOTHO and MADAGASCAR noted that information
exchange should not be limited to the Internet. SRI LANKA
proposed an expert committee to prepare acommunication model
and strategy. GERMANY and PERU called for aternative mecha-
nismsto ensure the widest possible distribution of information.
NEW ZEALAND proposed that the CHM assume afacilitating
role to promote assi stance among Parties regarding CBD projects.
ARGENTINA and NEW ZEALAND stressed the importance of
regional cooperation and information exchange. GEORGIA
suggested that governments submit information on the state of their
indigenous and local communities.

SWEDEN supported arecommendation in the background
paper calling for ahigh-level inter-agency task force, and invited
ideas for amechanism to allow for increased participation.

CANADA advocated waiting for the outcome of deliberations
underway in the UN Commission for Human Rightsregarding a
permanent forum. The US questioned the contribution of atask
force given the existence of the Working Group. GERMANY
stated more information on existing initiatives was needed before
establishing atask force. The INTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE
called for better coordination among international agencies, espe-
cialy for discussionson rightsand other legal aspects. The ASIAN
INDIGENOUSAND TRIBAL PEOPLESNETWORK noted the
problem of overlapping mandates of international agreementsand
processes. ARGENTINA cautioned against creating new mecha-
nisms. INDIA noted the fact-finding mission by the World Intellec-
tual Property Organization and suggested that it present itsfindings
to the COP. SENEGAL called for greater synergy between the
CBD and UNESCO’s Man and the Biosphere Project.

BRAZIL supported aproviso calling for due regard to national
legislation, and INDIA called for national policiesand dialogue.
The GLOBAL FORUM OF INDIGENOUS PEOPL ES stressed
that national recognition of indigenous peoplesby governmentsisa
prerequisite to discussing any mechanisms. MADAGASCAR and
NAMIBIA highlighted theimportance of integrating local and
indigenous communitiesinto theidentification and formulation of
conservation and sustainable use strategies. NEPAL TAMANG
WOMEN GHEDUNG proposed areference to customary and
collectiverights, and, supported by PERU, highlighted the crucial
role of indigenouswomen in sustainable development and conser-
vation of biodiversity.

HONDURAS said that some indigenous groups do not always
actintheinterest of the environment. TEBTEBBA stated that such
groups may beforced to do so, because of poverty and marginaliza-
tion. She called attention to work in other foraon IPR, noting that
someinternational agreementsundermine effortsto preserve
knowledge. The AUSTRALIAN INDIGENOUS DELEGATION
noted the absence of itsgovernment del egation and called for legal
frameworks at the national and international levelsto protect tradi-
tional knowledge.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Some delegates noted the reiteration of political issuesthat
arose during the M adrid meeting, such as human rights, indigenous
“peoples’ and control over resources, and questioned how a
process focused on Article 8(j) could moveforward within this
larger debate. Some indigenous del egates expressed frustration at
not being ableto present the Indigenous Forum's statement during
the opening session, noting theirony of thisin aprocess ostensibly
designed to facilitate their participation. Some ask: isthisdgavu
from COP-4, which excluded indigenous peoples from full and
effective participationin itsdiscussions?

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

SUB-WORKING GROUP |: SWG-I will meet at 10:00 amto
discusslega and other forms of protection for traditional knowl-
edge.

SUB-WORKING GROUP I1: SWG-I1 will meet at 10:00 am
to discussthe work programmes’ devel opment.

LEGISLATIVE OPTIONSTO PROTECT INDIGENOUS
KNOWLEDGE: A briefing on thistopic organized by the Indige-
nous Knowledge Program will meet at 1:00 pm on Level R.



